Questions & Answers
Proposed Natural Gas Solicitation for Energy-Related Environmental Research
GF0-15-507

Project Eligibility 
1. I study biological methane sinks. I'm characterizing the microorganisms in semi-arid soils that consume methane and convert it to biomass and CO2. I'm working towards developing bioremediative solutions for the problem of methane emissions -- Emissions from feed lots, gas leaks, sewage treatment, and so on. Such a solution could provide a nice 'green' way to lower GHG emissions from a range of point sources. Is research that is looking at the efficacy (and optimization) of biotechnology suitable for this solicitation?  

For this particular solicitation, the goal of the groups is to better characterize and quantify fugitive methane emissions, rather than to develop methodology for mitigating or reducing emissions. Without additional information, it appears that your research on biological methane sinks may be outside of the scope for this solicitation. We recommend you read the solicitation carefully and make your own decision. 

Applicant Eligibility
2. Section II.A.2 of the attached solicitation states that "each grant agreement resulting from this solicitation will include the terms and conditions that set forth the recipients rights and responsibilities."  The Terms and Conditions section goes on to say that applicants must accept the terms and conditions either of 1) University of California; 2) US DOE; 3) standard terms and conditions.  LBNL does not accept grants from any organization except NIH, which is the main reason I wanted to verify eligibility.  However, State of California and DOE have a model agreement established for contracting between State agencies and DOE national labs.  See here:  http://www.dgs.ca.gov/ols/Resources/DOEStandardLanguage.aspx. Do you know if this is the contract that would be signed if a proposal submitted by LBNL were to be awarded? 
Because this solicitation is funded with Public Interest Energy Research (PIER) Natural Gas funds, the reference to “US DOE” in Section II.A.2. refers to the Energy Commission’s PIER Natural Gas terms applicable to US DOE national laboratories, which includes LBNL. It does not refer to an agreement between US DOE and LBNL.  

The Energy Commission has negotiated terms and conditions for use with US DOE national laboratories for its various programs. Because this solicitation funds PIER Natural Gas grants, the applicable terms for US DOE laboratories for this solicitation can be found at: 
http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/pier_terms_segmented/PIER_Grant_DOE.pdf 
The expectation is that if LBNL wins an award under this solicitation, it will agree to use these terms, as it has in past PIER Natural Gas grant agreements.   
The Department of General Services (DGS), on behalf of state agencies, negotiated model contract terms with US DOE for use with US DOE national laboratories located in California.  However, these terms only apply to contracts and not to grant solicitations like this one.  In addition, DGS’s terms are just a model.  State agencies do not have to use them, and the Energy Commission instead uses the terms it has negotiated.       
3. Will public utilities like SMUD, under the PG&E natural gas investor-owned utility area eligible to be an applicant (prime) in this Natural Gas Solicitation for Energy-related environmental research? Note: SMUD’s customers use natural gas from PG&E.
No.
4. Can private or public companies bid two different groups with two different scopes?
Yes. A single entity can submit multiple proposals so long as the scope of work is unique in each one.
Technical 
5. The proposal includes language in Group 2 regarding N2O emissions from Natural Gas Combustion units. I would like to confirm that you want research on N2O emissions from these units and not NO2 emissions. 
Yes. Nitrous oxide (N2O) emission is the research topic, not nitrogen dioxide (NO2). 
6. Please clarify the scope of field measurements focusing on natural gas vehicles and refueling stations in Group 2. Does “natural gas vehicles” refer to emissions from natural gas refueling stations or is CEC looking for measurements of methane emissions from vehicle operation? What is the desired balance between measurements of vehicle refueling stations, power plants, and other industrial facilities?
The emission from natural gas vehicles refer to both emissions from refueling stations and from vehicle operation. Note that fugitive and intentional methane emissions not necessarily associated with combustion are of great importance, but preliminary evidence suggests that some methane may escape unburned in combustion devices at unexpected higher levels. 
7. Please clarify what is meant by comparing and evaluating “climate effects” in Group 2. For example, running a climate impact model is one possibility.  What is the desired method for this analysis?  
There no need to run complex climate models. It is up to the applicants to decide what methods and what to emphasize in assessing climate impacts. For instance, it could include radiative forcing and changes in temperatures. Two examples of papers that have attempted to address this issue are as follows:
Edwards, M R., J. E. Tancik.  Climate impacts of energy technologies depend on emissions timing. Nature Climate Change. 4, 347-352 (2014).
Peters, G. P., B. Aamass, M. T. Lund, C. Sollit, J. S. Fuglestvedt. Alternative “Global Warming” Metrics in Life Cycle Assessment: A Case Study with Existing Transportation Data. Env. Sci. Technol. 2011, 45 (20), pp 8633-8641.
8. Regarding “all the warming agents” in Group 2, can the CEC clarify what this list entails in addition to CO2, Methane and N2O?
For group 2, GHG gases of interest are methane, carbon dioxide and nitrous oxide. 
9. Can CEC clarify the link, if any, between the first part of Group 2 (i.e. emissions from industrial facilities) and the second part (i.e. GIS Lifecycle emissions estimates)?  Is CEC looking for the results from the emissions analysis from industrial facilities to be included as an input to the Lifecycle emissions analysis?  
While conducting field measurements, researchers should also obtain life cycle information relevant to the basin of origin of the natural gas consumed in the facilities. The emission profiles from upstream production regions may be very different. One of the effective ways to visualize the difference is to use a GIS framework.  
10. Can CEC clarify the involvement of a GIS framework for the lifecycle analysis in Group 2?  Is CEC looking to analyze how lifecycle emissions vary from producing basins supplying California only, how lifecycle emissions vary across regions in California only, or both?  
Both. Note, however, that the natural gas industry is quite flexible such that natural gas could come from different basins depending on different factors such as demand from other parts of the USA. Researchers should assume that it is possible to determine the natural gas basin supplying natural gas to a specific sub-region in California even thought this may not be possible to do with the needed level of certainty.   
11. Please clarify what is meant by energy technologies in Group 2. Does CEC mean the industrial facilities that are being measured or does CEC mean related to the emissions sources?  Or something else?

Regarding “energy technologies” evaluation, the Energy Commission seeks to use findings from this research to build on the existing knowledge base of greenhouse gas emissions from different energy technologies to better understand their climate effect. Energy technologies include power plants, space heating units, and industrial furnaces that burn natural gas, or in general any energy technology consuming natural gas to provide energy services such as space conditioning, transportation, and process heat. 

12. You listed a slide for Group 2 that said “proposed research must” followed by a bunch of different criteria, and I wanted to understand if each proposal must meet all of those criteria that are listed in there.
Yes it must address all of the research criteria listed. Most likely one single research group will not be capable of doing all of these in-house. That is one of the reasons why we are giving nearly two months to prepare the applications to allow for the necessary collaborations.
13. For Project Group 3 “Characterize the Impact of California’s Drought-Related Subsidence on Natural Gas Infrastructure,” what portion of the budget (or other measure of effort) would CEC wish to have allocated to the requirement to “conduct additional subsidence measurements”?

There is no specific guidance regarding the portion of the budget that needs to be allocated for “additional subsidence measurements.” However your application should reflect the initial state of knowledge about the observed subsidence (type of subsidence (vertical or lateral), subsidence rate, soil type, pipeline type (transmission, distribution), and angles of subsidence relative to the pipeline) and identify knowledge gaps. A successful proposal would provide a clear and feasible plan on how those gaps will be addressed. 

14. For group 3, is the project duration 3 years or 2 years? 
The awarded projects have to be completed before 4/1/2020. With the anticipated agreement start date of 4/3/2017 (page 8 in the solicitation manual) the project duration can be as long as three years. However, if the project can be accomplished sooner (for example within two years) you may consider an earlier end date.
15. Regarding group 3, does the CEC help establish the contact with the CPUC and investor-owned utilities or do those entities have to be collaborators on the proposal?
The Energy Commission is not responsible for reaching out to the CPUC or IOUs and establishing collaborations between them and grant recipients. Note that the CPUC and IOUs do not need to be part of the team for an application. As a side note, if the grant recipient will need an access to customer energy usage data from the IOUs, there was a CPUC issued Decision (D.) 14-05-016 Decision Adopting Rules to Provide Access to Energy Usage and Usage-Related Data While Protecting Privacy of Personal Data (“the Decision”), which provides access to certain third parties, such as university researchers and local governments, to certain aggregated and anonymized customer data collected by the four California investor-owned utilities (IOUs) that would help with that. http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M090/K845/90845985.PDF
16. Under project group 3 CEC is interested that applicants propose the costs of short term and long term mitigation. Are you also interested in failure costs in the gaps utilities or just the mitigation costs for avoiding the risks?
Both.
17. On the project group 3 and group 4 which is dealing with soil subsidence, is the CEC looking for development of any subsidence models, or are they thinking of using the NASA models and supplementing that with a little bit of field measurements, or are you looking for the bidding company to develop some subsidence model?
We are not seeking development of subsidence models. The solicitation is focused on the physical impact of subsidence on natural gas infrastructure. At the same time, the high-resolution imagery collected by JPL/NASA were taken mostly in areas important for the water system like the aqueduct, so there may be some areas where additional measurements may be beneficial to study subsidence impacts on the natural gas system. Applicants should consider the potential risk to natural gas infrastructure  if the drought continues, and more severe subsidence takes place.
18. The title in Group 4 specifies “Abandoned/Plugged Natural Gas Wells”.  How are natural gas wells defined?  Would an oil well that co-produces natural gas be considered a natural gas well?  Are abandoned/plugged oil wells not of interest?

For this solicitation, natural gas wells are defined as wells that produce natural gas. Therefore, associated wells (wells produce both natural gas and oil) are considered natural gas wells. Wells that are only producing oil may also emit methane, but research funds in this solicitation can only be spent on natural gas-related activities. 

19. First bullet point in Group 4 specifies “natural gas wells”.  Is this referring to active and abandoned/plugged wells, or only to abandoned/plugged wells?  Are oil wells not of interest? 
For this group in the current solicitation, only abandoned/plugged natural gas wells are of interest. Oil wells are outside of the solicitation scope.
20. Second bullet point in Group 4 says “characterize the emissions.”  Are other gas (non-methane) emissions of interest?  

For group 4 in the current solicitation, methane emission is the primary interest. Researchers may also conduct measurement of other emissions in addition to methane.

21. Division of Oil, Gas & Geothermal Resources (DOGGR) provides data for download on their website.  Are there additional data that can only be obtained by communicating with someone from DOGGR?  Has there been any agreement/discussion between DOGGR and CEC on how to collaborate on this project?   

The Energy Commission will facilitate the communication between DOGGR and a selected awardee to obtain necessary information for the research. 

22. One of the recommendations from the Nov 2015 workshop is the “need to determine the impact of subsidence on well casings”.  Are the cement plugs, the cement in the annulus, and other aspects of wellbore integrity not of interest in Group 4?  

Yes, they are of interest. 

23. My question regards group 4, there’s a requirement to coordinate with the DOGGR I’m curious if that requirement is required for the application or if it’s required as part of the proposed project.
[bookmark: _GoBack]To find the information on wells over the course of the project (if selected), you will need to coordinate with DOGGR. However, we would encourage you to initiate a contact during your proposal writing period. At the same time, DOGGR does not have to be part of the research team; it is just that they have substantial information that would help during the preparation of applications. For example, they have publicly-available data on the location of known abandoned wells, with the dates that they were abandoned and other types of useful information. 
24. I just received an email about the GFO that you have out that includes IAQ funding (Group 5).  On page 20 there is a paragraph that I believe has some old language from the prior solicitation that dealt with electricity...but this one is for NG.  Can you tell me, is the second half of the following really intended to say “NG” or “energy” instead of “electricity”?    
The proposed research must have a strong connection to energy efficiency and to natural gas system in particular.  Proposals offering generic IEQ studies without a clear link to electricity will not be considered for funding. For example, the studies could be designed to demonstrate that a given approach would improve IEQ without compromising the overall electric efficiency of homes and buildings. 

We intended to say “natural gas” instead of “electricity.” The solicitation was amended to make this correction. 
Application Process
25. If selected, is the grant and all funding given to one institution, which then subcontracts to the others or can the funding from the CEC be directed to multiple entities on the same winning proposal?
The funds for an agreement will be awarded entirely to the prime recipient, who will then pass funds to any subcontractors.
26. Related to the budget available, is the CEC thinking of funding several projects under one group or just one project under each group?
The Energy Commission expects to fund only one project in each group. However, it is possible if the top-rated project does not require the maximum amount allotted for the group, that a second project could be awarded. The Energy Commission also reserves the right to reallocate funds between groups, such as if no project in a group is funded. 
27. I had a question about the evaluation. And I just wanted to understand if the Energy Commission is doing any evaluation as to potential merits and approaches and the various criteria, scoring criteria, who exactly is doing that
The Energy Commission will do the scoring evaluation. However, the Energy Commission may seek technical review from experts outside of the Commission. Please refer to the solicitation manual section IV.F. for additional information about the scoring criteria.
Miscellaneous
28. I don’t believe I received this GFO from CEC...can you tell me which list I need to be on to receive notice about such offerings? 

To receive different Energy Commission announcements, please visit the following link for email lists subscription. Note that the “opportunity” list is used to distribute information on Energy Commission requests for proposals, solicitations, contracts, and funding announcements. http://www.energy.ca.gov/listservers/






July 2016	Page 8 of 9                 	GF0-15-507
		Proposed Natural Gas Solicitation for
		 Energy-Related Environmental Research
	 
